VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT
VILLAGE BOARD - MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, April 23, 2013 7:00pm
Location: Village Hall conference room

e CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE: please silence cell phones & electronic devices & refrain from texting

e MOMENT OF SILENCE: to honor those that serve our Country, enforce our laws, & respond to emergencies

e MISSION STATEMENT: “To provide a high quality of life for all residents, exercising fiscal responsibility and
preserving Brockport’s unique heritage and historic character.”

e PUBLIC COMMENT: 5 minute limit per person / state name & address for record & speak directly to entire
Board / share if this is a prepared statement & submit hard copy to Clerk after reading (& electronically next day)

o CERTIFICATES & PROCLAMATIONS:
0 Art Appleby to accept Proclamation — Annual CROP Walk 5/5

o GUESTS:
0 Robert Currier- Navy Club — request to utilize half of municipal parking lot on Clinton St for 6/1 event
0 Colleen Farley-Genesee Valley Penny Saver—request to bring “Readers Choice” horse 4/29-5/6 & 8/5-8/12
0 Christina Simmons & Amy Curran - CGlI Communications, Inc. — proposal - community video program
0 Rebecca Rhodes - SUNY - Gold Leadership Project — recycling project

e CONSENSUS ITEMS:
0 Approval of minutes — 4/9
o0 Approval of bills to be paid

¢ CLERK REPORT:
0 Clerk — Leslie Ann Morelli
= 2013 Events Schedule
ACA — Affordable Care Act (health care reform) — compliance update
NYSDOT workshop 3/28 - special use permits (i.e. speed contests, special events, parades...)
NYCOM Village Officials Workshops 4/19

e DEPARTMENT REPORTS: (Treasurer & Department Heads are in attendance the 4™ Tuesday of each month)
0 Treasurer — Daniel P. Hendricks
= External audit for fiscal year ending 5/31/12
Financial reports for period ending 3/31/13
Budget Transfers & Budget Amendments
Budget — resolutions to adopt budget and collect taxes
PILOT re-negotiation — Park Place Apartments

o0 Building / Zoning / Code Enforcement — Codes Officer Scott C. Zarnstorff
= 2013 Residential Rental Registration Statements

0 Police — Police Chief Daniel P. Varrenti
= Status — 2013 Residential Rental Registration Statements

0 Public Works — Superintendent Harry G. Donahue
= Authorization to advertise for DPW summer help (4 seasonal laborers)

e PERSONNEL ITEMS:
0 Accept resignation — Caitlin Moore — Historic Preservation Board

e OLD BUSINESS:
0 Newsletter — approve final draft & authorize Trustee Blair to proceed with printing/distribution plan

o NEW BUSINESS:
0 Reappointment of Farmers Market Managers for 2013 season

e VILLAGE BOARD REPORTS:
o Mayor Maria Connie Castafieda

0 Trustee William G. Andrews

o Trustee Margaret B. Blackman

o0 Trustee Kent R. Blair

o Trustee Carol L. Hannan

e EXECUTIVE SESSION (if needed)

e ADJOURNMENT
Upcoming:
e 7pm Tuesday, 5/7 — Village Board work session
e 7pm Tuesday, 5/14 — Village Board meeting
e 7pm Tuesday, 5/28 — Village Board meeting (w/ Attorney, Treasurer, Department Heads)




GUIDELINES
FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:

The public shall be allowed to speak only during the public
comment period of the meeting or at such time as
recognized by the presiding officer.

- e Speakers must be visible.

o Speakers must give their name, address and
organization, if any.

e Speakers must be recognized by the presiding officer.

e Speakers must limit their remarks to (5) five minutes on a
given topic or extended if recognized by the presiding
ofﬁcer.

e Board members may, with the perhission of the Mayor,
interrupt a speaker during their remarks, but only for the
purpose of clarification or information.

o All remarks shall be addressed to the Board as a body
and not to any member thereof.

e Speakers shall observe the commonly accepted rules of
courtesy, decorum, dignity and good taste.

e Interested parties or their representatives may address
the Board by written communications in the event of
creating a hardship to attend the meeting personally.



Village of Brockport
Fiscal Year 6/1/13 —-5/31/14
Budget Preparation Calendar
Adopted by Village Board 11/27/12

Thursday, 1/10/13

Treasurer to notify Department Heads (via memo w/ templates &
discussion at Department Heads meeting) of the necessity for
expense estimates

Tuesday, 1/22/13

Treasurer to provide “knowns” per contracts & rates: employees
payroll & benefits / retirees benefits

Thursday, 1/24/13

Department Heads to submit expense estimates to Treasurer

Tuesday, 2/5/13

Village Board workshop w/ Treasurer & Department Heads -
discuss department budget estimates

Tuesday, 2/26/13

Village Board meeting — update public on progress

Tuesday, 3/5/13

Village Board workshop w/ Treasurer — discuss & make revisions to
budget estimates

Treasurer to file tentative budget with Clerk

Wednesday, 3/20/13

Tuesday, 3/26/13 Village Board meeting — update public on progress — Treasurer to
present tentative budget to Village Board & Department Heads

Wednesday, 3/27/13 Clerk to publish notice of public hearing on tentative budget

for 4/1/13 edition

Tuesday, 4/2/13 Village Board workshop w/ Treasurer— discuss & make revisions to
tentative budget
Treasurer to present budget to public - public hearing on

Tuesday, 4/9/13

e
e

preliminary budget (Middle School L.G.1.)

(uesday, 4/23/13

)@/Hlage Board meeting — adopt budget (must be done by May 1%




VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT
PROCLAMATION

# || WHEREAS, on Sunday afternoon, May 5™ many area residents will “Walk with the World” in the 31*
{ (M| Annual CROP WALK in Brockport; and _ |

WHEREAS, this is dohe {0 help provide seeds, {ools, water resources, vocational and literacy (raining
and other seli-help skills needed overseas through Church World Service; and

WHEREAS; women, men and children fhronghout the world must walk long distances every day to get
waler, food and shelfer in order fo survive; and

-~ WHEREAS; iwenty-five percent of CROP WALK funds raised will assist hungry people right in our own
- area through (he Brockport Food Shelf; and

: WHEREAS; there have been 30 walks beiween 1983 and 2012, which have raised thie total of over
$233,000 of which $57,700 (25%) has stayed in Brockport; and

WHEREAS; there continues {o be a growing number of people who need assistance at our local food
panfry and a need for education regarding poverfy and hunger in the world;

NOW, THEREFORE, 1, Maria Connie Castafieda, Mayor of the Village of Brockport along with Trustees
Andrews, Blackman, Blair, and Hannan do hereby proclaim May 5", 2013 to he CROP WALK Day in
the Village of Brockport and encourage all our citizens to ‘Walk With the World” by walking,

sponsoring a walker or making a giit to “CROP.”

IN WITNESS WHEROF, we herehy sef our hand, and cause the Corporate Seal of the Village of
Brockport to be aifixed this 23" day of April, in the year 2013.

”/}//@m I O&%Mﬂ)

Marid Connie C staneda, Mayor

%@/M;ﬂ { Qw@@u@ 7/% ﬁ -

William G. Andrews, Trustee M%rgaret B. Blackman, Trustee

e o Q.Mmcm,

/Keﬁ R. Blair, Trustee Carol L. Hannan, Trustee




Navy Club of Lake Ontario, Ship 1812, Inc.

Leslie,

My name is Robert Currier and I am the Commanding Officer at the Navy Club of Lake Ontario,
located at 21 Clinton Street. The reason for this email is to ask to be put on the dockit for the next village
board meeting. This would be to ask the board permission to close half of the parking lot, (shared with
police) so that we may hold another event as we’ve done in the past two years. The past events were a
motorcycle run and a pig roast, between the past events we were able to raise a donation of $1000 and
present it to a Veterans Hospital (PTSD ward ) in Batavia NY. The events were also held with no
altercations with the law.

I am asking the board permission for the 1 of June as we would like to hold another Pig Roast.
Thank you in advance for the support the village has given the Navy Club. Any question I may be
contacted at 585-967-4935 (cell) or 637-6110 (navy club) after 4pm.

Robert Currier
Commanding Officer

;
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My APR T2 208

21 Clinton Street, P.O. Box 185, Brockport, New York 14420

GO NAVY !!
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DATE:  April 16,2013
TO: Brockport Village Board
FROM: Colleen Farley

Genesee Valley Penny Saver

Last year, we received board approval to bring “Reader’s
Choice”, our equine mascot to Brockport. The horse was
allowed to use one parking spot in front of our building at
15 Main St.

We are asking again this year for permission to have the
horse visit the village, on the following dates. Our truck and
driver are in Brockport each Monday.

April 29 - May 6 for the Low Bridge/High Water event
August 5 - 12 for the Arts Festival

Thank you for your consideration.

Vi .
7 -
@é&’i’/@‘

Colleen Farley
Genesee Valley Penny Saver
Office: 585.637.5100

Cell: 585-967-5866
Email: colleenfarley@gvpennysaver.com

A Genesee Vaolley Publication -

Toll Free 866081208111 or www.gvpennysaver.com



«Reader’s Choice™;

peehly Read!
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Summary of Community Video Showcase Program

CGI Communications, Inc. has entered into a partnership with the US Conference of Mayors and the National League of
Cities to provide communities a marketing tool that they can utilize to showcase and promote their community assets and
attributes. As a result of this partnership, the Village of Brockport, NY has been presented with the opportunity to receive
a fully produced, NO COST Community Showcase program to be featured on the village’s official website.

Our Community Showcase program is a valuable tool for the Village of Brockport, NY to enhance its website by adding
streaming video content. The video content will allow the village to effectively engage and communicate with your on line
audience in a powerful, new and innovative way. We will come to your lotation to film the necessary footage to fully
produce a Welcome Chapter PLUS three additional community highlight videos on topics such as Quality of Life
Relocation, Business and Industry, Education, etc. The program will be customized to showcase the best of what
Brockport, NY has to offer to residents, visitors, and businesses. Also, with the click of a button you will be able to send
your entire video interface to anyone in the world with an email address or Smariphone! Whether it be a recruiter, site
locator, future resident, or visitor you will now have a powerful tool to answer all questions and inquiries about your
community! In addition, the Village of Brockport, NY will be able to track video viewership on their website though our
SmartTrackll technology. Our innovative tracking technology will show you not only which video has been viewed and
when, but also what community it was viewed from, allowing the Village to further tailor their website to meet the individual
needs of the end user.

To view an example of our Video Tour Book, please click here;

hitp://www.amsterdamny.gov/

hitp://www.simpsonville.com/

In addition to the videos we will produce for and about your community, we will provide the local business community with
the opportunity fo utilize our various digital media tools and services as well. Businesses will be able to expand their
outreach by having their own video produced as well. It is solely CGl's responsibility to educate the local businesses on
opportunity for participation. In addition, local non profit organizations will be able to expand their visibility though the
program by having a free link and logo around the Community Organizations Chapter provided, certainly something they
will be excited about! The best part about our program is that the village bears no liability whatsoever regardless of
sponsorship participation. This Video Tour will truly enhance your Village's website as the primary destination for
information about Brockport, NY.

Whether you are actively promoting tourism, recruiting businesses for economic development, or simply looking for ways
to provide the public with additional information about your community, this is a progressive opportunity to assist you with
achieving your marketing objectives. With no financial investment from Village funds, we've eliminated the need for
lengthy budget meetings and approval processes, therefore allowing us to begin production immediately!

Thank you for taking the time to review our proposed program for the Village of Brockport, NY. We look forward to
working with you!

Please don't hesitate to contact us if you have any questions regarding our program!
Best Regards,

Nicole Rongo

Vice President of Marketing

800.398.3029 x 203
nicoler@cgicommunications.com



2013 Lommunily video 10Ur Agreement _Name.connie Lastaneaa

CGI Communications, Inc.
130 East Main Street, 8th Floor
Rochester, NY 14604

Title: Mayor

Address: 49 State Street

Town, State, Zip: Brockport, NY, 14420
Phone: 585.637.5300

(800) 398-3029 phone Email: Mccastaneda@brockporiny.org
(866) 429-8611 fax Website: www.brockportny.org

This agreement is between CGI Communications, Inc. and the Village of Brockport and shall remain in effect from the date it is signed by both
parties until the third anniversary of the date that the completed and approved Community Video Program is made available for viewing via a
link on the www.brockportny.org website homepage for viewer access. Any termination or modification of this Agreement shall nof take ef-
fect until the expiration of the current term.

CGI Communications, Inc shall provide a Community Video Program as follows:

One welcome video from your Mayor or other civic leader

Up to 3 additional videos to showcase various aspects of your community (providing a total of Four 1 minute community highlight videos)
One Community Organization chapter to promote charities, nonprofits and community development organizations

Script writing and video content consultation

A videographer will come to your location to film videos

All aspects of video production and editing, from raw footage to final video including professional voiceovers and background music

Final draft of Community Video Showcase content subject to your approval (up to 3 sets of revisions allowed). Any request for approval any
revision, including f nal draft, shall be deemed approved if no response is received by us within thirty (30) days of request

Store and stream all videos on CGI s dedicated server

Business sponsors allowed on the perimeter of video panels

Businesses will be allowed to purchase various digital media products and services from CGl Communications and its company affiliates
Duration of sponsor participation will be one year and CGI Communications is solely responsible for annual sponsorship fulfillment including all
related aspects of marketing, production, printing, and distribution

Viewer access of the Community Video Program from your website shall be facilitated by CGl Communications providing HTML source code
for graphic link to be prominently displayed on the www.brockportny.org website homepage as follows: “Coming Soon” graphic link
designed to coordinate with existing website color theme to be provided within 10 business days of execution of this agreement; "Video Tour”
graphic link to be provided to replace the “Coming Soon” link upon completion and approval of videos

CGI Communications will own copyrights of the master Community Video Program

The Village of Brockport will assume no cost or liability for this project

Program Add On:

.

Fast Track Tracking Feature included

The Village of Brockport shall:

.

.

Provide A letter of introduction for the program on your organization’s letterhead
Assist with the content and script for the Community Video Program
Grant CGl Communications the right to use organization’s name in connection with the preparation, production, and marketing of the program

Display the “Coming Soon” graphic link prominently on the www.brockportny.org website homepage within 10 business days of receipt of
HTML source code
Agrees to display the “Video Tour” fink to be no less than 150 by 400 pixels prominently on the www.brockportny.org website homepage for

the term of this agreement

In the event contract signatory changes, the Village of Brockport agreement shall remain valid until the agreed upon expiration date

Grant full and exclusive streaming video rights for CGl and its subsidiaries, affiliates, successors and assigns to stream all video content on
Community Video Program and all related CGI Programs, including but not limited to its “Community Video Network”

Represent and warrant that any and alf photographs, videos, and other content it submits to us for use in any video or other production does
not infringe on any third party's copyrighted material, trademark or other intellectual privacy or publicity rights and shall defend and indemnify
us from any such claim or action

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes any and all prior communications, understandings and agree-
ments, whether oral or written. No modification or claimed waiver of any provision shall be valid except by written amendment signed by the
parties herein

We, the undersigned, understand the above information and have full authority to sign this agreement

The Village of Brockport CGl Communications, Inc.

Signature: Signature: K_/{D'LL\’ ol KW
Name (printed): Name (printed): Nicole Rongo

Title: Title: Vice President of Marketing

Date:

Date:




Dear Brockport Business Owner:

The Village of Brockport is excited to announce the launch of a new program that we feel will have a
significant impact on the promotion of our wonderful community. We have entered into a three year

agreement with CGl Communications to produce a series of streaming online videos highlighting all
our community has to offer its residents, visitors, and businesses.

CGl is a leader in online marketing solutions, working with thousands of communities and businesses
nationwide. With an easily viewable interface on the official village website (www.brockportny.org)
their video program will encourage viewers to learn more about area attractions, economic
development opportunities, quality of life, and so much more.

In addition to the videos being on the village's official web site, they will also be featured on
Relocate.org, the largest relocation network in the nation. The Village of Brockport is dedicated to
highlighting the advantages of living and working in our community, and we feel that this program can
do just that!

A representative of CGl Communications will be contacting you with an opportunity to take advantage

of their innovative digital media tools and services. We encourage you to consider supporting this
program, which we feel is truly a win-win for all involved.

Best Regards,

Sighatory
Title



VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT

49 State Street - Brockport, New York 14420
Telephone (585) 637-5300 - Fax (585) 637-1045
Website: www.brockportny.org

The Victorian Village on the Erie Canal

Preserve America Community

Listed on the State and National Registers of Historic Places
Certified Local Government

Tree City USA Comnnmity

Aprﬂ 1 7 2 O 1 3 Erie Canalway Heritage Award of Excellence

Mr. Norman Frisch
Brockport, NY 14420
Dear Norm:

Thank you for assisting me again this year with the Village of Brockport’s
Annual Events Schedule by formatting the information I gathered into a nice
poster. I will be sure my thanks are relayed on the record at the April 23 Village

Board meeting.

The 2013 Events Schedule will be posted to the Village website, distributed
to the Village Board, Departments, Brockport Merchants Association leadership,
forwarded to the New York State Canal Corporation and local media for any free
publicity they wish to provide, and made available at the Village Hall, Welcome
Center, Seymour Library, Sweden Town Hall, Sweden Senior Center, Sweden-
Clarkson Community Center and SUNY Welcome Center.

It is community members like you who help make Brockport such a special
place. Thanks again for your help! '

Sincerely,

Village of Brockport

Xc: Village Board

Mayor Maria Connie Castaiieda
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Leslie Ann Morelli

From: Leslie Ann Morelli [Imorelli@brockportny.org]

Sent: Monday, April 15, 2013 1:15 PM

To: Mayor Maria Connie Castaneda ; Trustee Bill Andrews : Trustee Carol Hannan ; Trustee Kent
Blair, Trustee Margay Blackman

Cc: Treasurer Daniel P. Hendricks

Subject: Update - Affordable Care Act compliance

Attachments: Village of Brockport Hovering Near 50.pptx

VB

Xc: Treasurer

On 4/12 Dan H & | met with reps from Titan, our insurance broker of record re employee benefits.
Attached was the presentation they gave us.

As previously mentioned, there is a lot to the Affordable Care Act and compliance by 1/1/14.
At the appropriate time, Mayor will need to reach out to the Union Presidents so we can bring them up to speed.

Learned that it is preferable to be calculated as a small group. We hover close to that without the Library.
However, with the Library, we are considered an ALE — applicable large employer. Lots more involved.

Should the Seymour Library pursue the formation of a Library District, as has previously been proposed, the Village
would no longer count their employees in our numbers (as currently the Village processes their payroll, benefits, Civil
Service, Retirement).

The Employee Handbook and Union Contracts will have to be updated to reflect changes due to the ACA as to specific
health insurance plan, HRA deductible amounts, and the number of hours that constitute a full time employee for ACA /
health insurance purposes, keeping part time capped at certain # of hours per week & per year, etc.

Letters have to go to employees around late summer for anticipated 10/1/13 open enrollment to comply by 1/1/14.

Will keep you apprised as the process progresses.

Leslie Ann Morelli

Village Clerk

Village of Brockport

49 State Street

Brockport, NY 14420

(585) 637-5300 X12

(585) 6837-1045 fax
Imorelli@brockportny.org e-mail
www brockportny.org website

This e-mail, and any attachments thereto, is intended only for use by the addressee's named herein and may contain legally priveleged and/or
confidential information. If you are not the intended receipient of this e-mail, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this
e-mail, and any attachments thereto, is strictly prohibited. if you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify me and permanently delete
the original and any copy of any e-mail and any printout thereof. Thank you.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT
ANNUAL EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED 05/31/12

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the basic financial statements and letter
communicating internal control related matters identified in an audit has been
prepared by Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C. Certified Public Accountants for the
Village of Brockport for the fiscal year ended 05/31/12. Said report has been
filed with the Office of the New York State Comptroller and filed with me by the
Village Treasurer. Said report will be posted to the Village website at
www.brockportny.org and may be examined at Village Hall during regular
business hours.

Leslie Ann Morelli
Village Clerk
Village of Brockport

Dated: 4/12/13
For publication in the 4/21/13 edition of Suburban News.

For posting on Village website and Village Hall bulletin board.



Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Shareholders:

Raymond F. Wager, CPA
Thomas J. Lauffer, CPA
Thomas C. Zuber, CPA

Mr. Dan Henricks, Village Treasurer
Village of Brockport

49 State Street

Brockport, New York 14420

Dear Mr. Henricks:

Mambers of
American Institute of
Cenified Public Accountants
and
New York State Soclety of
Certified Public Accountants

April 10, 2013

We have enclosed ten copies of our Basic Financial Statements, Letter of

Communication, and the Letter Comm

unicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in

an Audit (Management Letter) for the Village of Brockport for the year ended May 31, 201,:1;:

We will email the Basic Financial Statements and Management Letter in a pdf format to

you.

Sincerely,
Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C.

Raymond F. Wager

1
;
S

[
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Tel: (585) 321-5643 » Fax: (585) 321-5644 « E-Mail: theoffice@raymondfwagercpa.com



VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT

MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK

COMMUNICATING INTERNAL CONTROL
RELATED MATTERS IDENTIFIED IN AN AUDIT

For Year Ended May 31, 2012



Shareholders:

Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Members of
American [nstitute of
Centified Public Accountants

Raymond F. Wager, CPA and
Thomas J. Lauffer, CPA 4 New York State Society of
Thomas C. Zuber, CPA Certified Public Accountants

January 31, 2013

To the Village Board
Village of Brockport .
Monroe County, New York

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Brockport, Monroe
County, New York as of and for the year ended May 31, 2012, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Village of Brockport, Monroe
County, New York’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Village’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the Village’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. In
addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management
override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls.
Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Prior Year Deficiencies Pending Corrective Action:

1. Lack of Internal Accounting Controls — Segregation of Duties — Treasurer Responsibilities —

The Treasurer was responsible for monthly bank reconciliation preparation, maintenance of the
general ledger, payroll data entry, and preparation of all journal entries.

1020 Lehigh Station Road ¢ Suites 2 & 3 « Henrietta, New York 14467
Tel: (585) 321-5643 » Fax: (585) 321-5644 » E-Mail: theoffice@raymondfwagercpa.com



(Prior Year Deficiencies Pending Corrective Action) (Continued)

2. Payroll —

a.

b.

Employees are not interviewed upon leaving employment at the Village.

The taxable benefit for the personal use of Village owned vehicles by employees was not
being reported as taxable income.

We noted a few individuals have not completed Form I-9 supported by two forms of
identification.

3. Computer Weaknesses —

An additional password to process a check run is not required on the Village’s computer
system. In a small entity such as a Village, an additional password for a check run adds
security to an internal control environment lacking the proper checks and balances.

The computer system allows for backdating of accounting entries.

4. Journal Entries —

Journal entries were not routinely reviewed by someone other than the preparer.

5. Disbursements —

Our examination of disbursements revealed the following:

a.

Through our interview process, we noted the Village pays the entire utility bill for a building
that they do not own and only partially use.

Through our interview process and examination of claims, we noted an improvement
regarding the use of requisitions prior to the purchase of goods and services, however, we did
note a few instances in which they were not used.

6. General Accountability —

The Village did not have a documented disaster recovery plan in place regarding financial
data. In addition, their plan has not been tested.

We noted there is still a lack of cross-training among finance department staff. However, the
Village is in the process of developing these procedures.

7. Yillage Policies —

The Village Board does not review the investment policy on an annual basis.



Other Items:

The following items are not considered to be deficiencies in internal control, however, we would like
to communicate them to you as follows:

Auditing Standards —

Auditing standards require that management document in writing their understanding of the
internal accounting controls that are in place in the finance department.

The finance department has started to develop job descriptions and operating procedures.
However, due to the high rate of turnover in recent years, we suggest management begin the process
to document the procedures performed for the various finance department functions (payroll, cash
receipts, cash disbursements, bank reconciliations, and monthly closing).

General Accountability —

The Village updated the procurement policy for the new bidding thresholds in accordance with
General Municipal Law; however, the procedures to be followed for purchases between the old and
new bidding thresholds were not addressed.

Prior Year Recommendations:

We are pleased to report the following prior year recommendations have been implemented to our
satisfaction:

1. There was proper supporting documentation for items on the monthly bank reconciliations. In
addition, monthly bank reconciliations were reviewed by someone independent of the
reconciliation process.

2. Multiple adjusting journal entries were not required in the General Fund, Water Fund, Capital
Fund, General Long-Term Debt Account Group and General Fixed Assets Account Group to
properly reflect year end account balances.

3. All manual checks prepared throughout the year appeared to be properly recorded on the financial
system.

4. When goods are received they are checked by an individual to verify the entire shipment was
received.

5. We were able to reconcile the total salary expenses to the total amount reported on the Federal
Form 941 quarterly reports.

* * *

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Village
Board, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

We wish to express our appreciation to all Village office staff for the courtesies extended to us during
the course of our examination.

January 31, 2013 KW[Z/W -V

“
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Village Board
The Village of Brockport
Monroe County, New York

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities,
business-type activities each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Brockport, Monroe County, New York (the Village) as of and for the year ended May 31, 2012, which
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of
contents. We also have audited the financial statements of the Village’s non-major governmental fund for
the year ended May 31, 2012. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the Village's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village as of May 31, 2012, and the respective
changes in financial position, thereof and the budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In
addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of each non-major governmental fund of the Village, as of May 31, 2012,
and the respective changes in financial position, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

1
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Sheet #2

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 12 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion

there on. ﬁ W%ﬂ(jgﬂé’/@ @’ﬂ/& id

January 31, 2013

o

Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C.



Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

May 31, 2012

Introduction

Our discussion and analysis of the Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York's financial
performance provides an overview of the Village's financial activities for the year ended May 31, 2012. It
should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements to enhance understanding of the
Village's financial performance, which immediately follows this section.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for year 2012 are as follows:

¢ At the end of the current year, the fund balance of the General Fund was $2,549,487 an increase
of $795,525 compared to the prior year.

¢ The Village’s governmental fund financial statements report a combined ending fund balance of
$2,571,179. Approximately $1,400,569 of this total amount is available for spending at the
Village’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

¢ On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the Village exceeded liabilities by
$5,193,203 an increase of $102,537 over the prior year. Of this amount, the unrestricted portion is
$2,286,510. The balance of net assets is either restricted for specific purposes or the net book
value of capital assets.

¢ General revenues which include Property Taxes, Non-Property Taxes, Mortgage Tax,
Compensation for Loss, Investment Earnings, Licenses and Permits, Fines and Forfeitures and
Miscellaneous accounted for $4,576,336 or 67% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the
form of Charges for Services and Operating Grants and Contributions accounted for $2,267,397
or 33% of total revenues.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village's basic financial
statements. The Village's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-
wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains individual fund statements and schedules in addition to the basic financial statements.

1 Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Village's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

¢ The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Village's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

o
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net
assets changed during the most recent year. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows.

The governmental activities of the Village include highway maintenance, snow
removal, general administrative support, community service, and interest on long-
term debt.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on the pages immediately
following this section as the first two pages of the basic financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

¢

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the Village can be divided into two categories: Governmental Funds and Fiduciary
Funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the Village's near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government's near term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village maintains one major individual governmental fund; General Fund,.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
for each fund. The Village has elected to report the Capital Projects Fund as a non-
major fund.

The Village adopts an annual budget for the general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund within the basic financial statements
to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The Proprietary Fund - The Village maintains two proprietary funds. The Water
Fund and the Sewer Fund are reported as Business Type Activities. The Proprietary
funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail.



¢ The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Village in an agency
capacity which accounts for assets held by the Village on behalf of others. Fiduciary
Funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of these funds are not available to support the Village's programs.

The financial statements for the Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York can be
found in the basic financial statement section of this report.

Major Features of the Village-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Village-Wide Governmental Fiduciary
Features Statements Funds Funds
Scope Entire Village The activities of the Instances in which the

Village that are not
proprietary or fiduciary,
such as General
Administration,
Highway.

Village administers
resources on behalf of
someone else

Required Financial
Statements

Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

Balance Sheet,
Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund
Balance

Statement of Fiduciary
Net Assets, and
Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets

Accounting Basis and
Measurement Focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resource focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial focus

Accrual accounting and
econontic resources
focus

Type of Asset/Liability
Information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and
capital, short-term and
long-term

Generally, assets
expected to be used up
and liabilities that come
due during the year or
soon thereafter; no
capital assets or long-
term liabilities included

All assets and liabilities
both short-term and
long-term; funds do not
currently contain capital
assets, although they can

Revenues for which
cash is received during
or soon after the end of
the year; expenditures
when goods or services
have been received and
the related liability is
due and payable

All additions and
deductions during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid

Type of Inflow/Outflow | All revenues and
Information expenses during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid
3. Notes 1o the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found following the basic financial statement section of this

report.




Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Village's financial position. In
the case of the Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York, net assets at the close of the current year
were $5,193,203.

Net Assets
Governmental  Business-Type Total Total
ASSETS Activities Activities 2012 2011 Variance
Current Assets $ 3,097,981 § 827568 § 3,925,549 § 2509017 $ 1,416,532
Capital Assets, Net 3,057,217 1,176,821 4,234,038 5,109,604 (875,566)
Total Assets $ 6,155,198 § 2,004,389 § 8,159,587 7,618,621  § 540,966
LIABILITIES
" Current Liabilities $ 321684 & 206343 § 528,027 259,058  § 268,969
Noncurrent Liabilities 1,638,389 799,968 2,438,357 2,268,897 169,460
Total Liabilities § 1,960,073 3§ 1,006,311 § 2,966,384 2,527,955 § 438,429
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt I L7718 8 376,853 § 2,154,038 2,959,604  § (805,566)
Restricted -
Capital Reserves 628,228 - 628,228 783,360 (155,132)
Capital Projects 12,230 - 12,230 12,230 -
Workers Comp Reserve 112,197 - 112,197 385,625 (273,428)
Unrestricted 1,665,285 621,225 2,286,510 949,847 1,336,663
Total Net Assets $ 4195125 § 998,078 % 5,193,203 5,090,666 $ 102,537

One of the largest component of the Village's net assets (41%) reflects its investment in capital assets, less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets
to provide services to the residents and consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the Village's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

There are restricted net asset balances in Capital Reserves, Capital Projects, and Worker Compensation
Reserve, which constitutes 15% of total net assets. The remaining balance is unrestricted net assets

totalling $2,286,510 or 44%.



Changes in Net Assets

Revenues:
Charges for Services

Operating Grants & Contributions

Taxes

Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Government Support

Public Safety
Health

Transportation

Economic Assistance & Opportunity
Culture & Recreation
Home & Community Services

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Water

Total Expenditures
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

Governmental  Business-Type Total Total
Activities Activities 2012 2011 Variance
§ 809,652 % 1,211,302 2,020,954 $ 2,180,842  § (159,888)
246,443 - 246,443 226,643 19,800
4,265,428 - 4,265,428 4,007,000 258,428
308,932 1,976 310,908 351,023 (40,115)
$ 5630455 § 1,213,278 6,843,733 3 6,765,508  § 78,225
§ 668,119 § - 668,119  § 933,589 $ (265,470)
2,915,780 . 2,915,780 2,432,067 483,713
143,565 - 143,565 333,470 (189,905)
1,289,831 - 1,289,831 683,388 606,443
6,917 - 6,917 63,437 (56,520)
176,663 - 176,663 237,209 (60,546)
527,585 - 527,585 1,141,316 (613,731)
41,748 - 41,748 33,128 8,620
- 970,988 970,988 - 970,988
$ 5770208 8 970,988 6,741,196 $ 5857604 § 883,592
$  (139,753) § 242,290 102,537 § 907,904 § (805,367)
4,334,878 755,788 5,090,666 4,182,762 907,904
$§ 4195125 § 998,078 5193203  § 5,090,666 § 102,537

The Village’s net assets increased by $102,537. As previously indicated and shown on the following
graphs, the Village relies upon taxes and charges for services as their primary revenue sources.

Expenditures are evenly distributed dependent on the Village’s services.
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Financial Analysis of the Village Funds

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance

related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in-assessing the
Village's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the year and
amounts to be applied against next years fund balance.

As of the end of the current year, the Village's combined governmental fund balances are
$2,571,179. Of this amount $1,400,569 is primarily for providing cash and for future spending
needs, $762,117 is restricted, and $408,493 is assigned.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current year, the
total fund balance of the General Fund was $2,549,487, of which $951,171 was unassigned.

Budgetary Highlights

The key budget variances for the General Fund are listed below.

Budget
Variance
Original
Vs
Expense Items Amended Explanation for Budget Variance
Public Safety $150,155 | Purchase of Fire Equipment and Police Car
Transportation $265,763 | Purchase of Dump Truck and Equipment for Department
Employee Benefits ($285,787) | Retirement and health insurance below budget estimates
Operating Transfers-Out ($158,000) | To balance accounts
Budget
Variance
Amended
Vs
Revenue Items Actual Explanation for Budget Variance
Non-Property Taxes $213,997 | Sales Taxes revenues received, higher than budgeted
Sale of Property and
Compensation for Loss $94,614 | Unanticipated sale of equipment
Refund from Worker’s Comp. Insurance, and Insurance
Miscellaneous 175,790 | Recoveries not anticipated
Budget
Variance
Amended
Vs
Expense Items Actual Explanation for Budget Variance
Employee Benefits $67,381 | To balance accounts
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Capital Assets

At May 31, 2012 the Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York had $4,234,038, net of
accumulated depreciation invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings and
improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. The capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, are below:

Class 2012
Governmental Activities .
Land 3 178,950
Land Improvements 149,561
Buildings 1,102,028
Equipment 231,611
Infrastructure 1,395,067
Total Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation $ 3,057,217
Business-Type Activities
Buildings $ 2,035
Infrastructure 1,174,786
Total Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation N 1,176,821

More detailed information about the Village's capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.

Long-Term Debt

At May 31, 2012, the Village had $2,438,357 in long-term debt outstanding, as follows:

2012
Governmental Activities
Serial Bonds $ 1,280,032
Compensated Absences 211,997
OPEB 146,360
Business-Type Activities
Serial Bonds 799,968

Total $ 2,438,357

11



Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village's finances for all those with
an interest in the Village's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:

The Village of Brockport
49 State Street
Brockport, New York 14420

12



VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Statement of Net Assets
May 31, 2012

Governmental  Business-Type

Total

ASSETS Activities Activities
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,541,241 $ 619,714 3,160,955
Accounts receivable, net 270,286 207,664 477,950
Due from other governments, net 286,454 - 286,454
Deferred expenditures - 190 190
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation: -
Land 178,950 - 178,950
Land improvements 149,561 - 149,561
Buildings 1,102,028 2,035 1,104,063
Equipment 231,611 - 231,611
Infrastructure 1,395,067 1,174,786 2,569,853
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,155,198 § 2,004,389 8,159,587
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 188,472 $ 200,546 389,018
Accrued liabilities 73,922 5,797 79,719
Due to ERS 59,290 - 59,290
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in one year 250,558 26,922 277,480
Due in more than one year 1,387,831 773,046 2,160,877
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,960,073 $ 1,006,311 2,966,384
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,777,185 376,853 2,154,038
Restricted for:
Capital reserves 628,228 - 628,228
Capital projects 12,230 - 12,230
Workers' compensation reserve 112,197 - 112,197
Unrestricted 1,665,285 621,225 2,286,510
TOTAL NET ASSETS § 4,195,125 % 998,078 5,193,203

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
13
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

May 31, 2012
Major Non-major Total
General Capital Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,519,549 $ 21,692 2,541,241
Receivables, net 270,286 - 270,286
Due from other governments, net 286,454 - 286,454
Total Assets $ 3,076,289 $ 21,692 3,097,981
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities 3 188,472 3 - 188,472
Accrued liabilities 279,040 - 279,040
Due to retirement system 59,290 - 59,290
Total Liabilities $ 526,802 3 - 526,802
Fund Balances:
Restricted $ 740,425 $ 21,692 762,117
Assigned 408,493 - 408,493
Unassigned 1,400,569 - 1,400,569
Total Fund Balances $ 2,549,487 3 21,692 2,571,179
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 3,076,289 b 21,692
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 3,057,217
Long-term liabilities, including serial bonds payable, are not due in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (1,280,032)
Interest is accrued on outstanding bonds in the statement of net assets
but not in the governmental funds. (2,362)
The following long-term obligations are not due and payable in the current
period, therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:
OPEB Liability (146,360)
Compensated absences are not reported in the funds under fund
accounting but are expensed as the liability is incurred in the statement
of net assets. 4,517
Net Assets of Governmental Activities 3 4,195,125

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

Major Non-major Total
General Capital Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Real property and tax items $ 2,569,351 $ - $ 2,569,351
Non-property taxes 1,668,997 - 1,668,997
Departmental income 242,089 - - 242,089
Intergovernmental charges 567,563 - 567,563
Use of money and property 1,772 - 1,772
Licenses and permits 20,575 - 20,575
Fines and forfeitures 52,681 - 52,681
Sale of property and compensation for loss 105,114 - 105,114
Miscellaneous 183,790 - 183,790
State and county aid 266,051 - 266,051
Federal aid 7,472 - 7,472
Total Revenues $ 5,685,455 $ - $ 5,685,455
Expenditures:
Current;
General government support 3 556,108 $ - $ 556,108
Public safety 1,954,066 - 1,954,066
Health 48,037 - 48,037
Transportation 997,341 - 597,341
Economic assistance and opportunity 6,917 - 6,917
Culture and recreation 183,898 - 183,898
Home and community services 52,044 - 52,044
Employee benefits 1,007,722 - 1,007,722
Debt Service:
Debt service - principal 43,078 - 43,078
Debt service - interest and other charges 40,719 - 40,719
Total Expenditures $ 4,889,930 $ - $ 4,889,930
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures $ 795,525 $ - 3 795,525
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,753,962 21,692 1,775,654
Fund Balance - Ending $ 2,549,487 b 21,692 $ 2,571,179

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 795,525

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlays in the current period.

Addition of Assets 3 9,575

Depreciation (206,366)

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets (857,128)

(1,053,919)

Bond and installment purchase debt proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term obligations in the statement
of net assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term obligations in the statement of net assets.
The following details these items as they effect the governmental activities:
Debt Repayment 43,078

The net OPEB liability does not require the use of current financial resources, and

therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds. (73,180)

Compensated absences represents the value of the earned and unused portion of the
liability for vacation and compensatory time. They are reported in the statement of
activities but do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the net change of

compensated absences. 149,772

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, whereas in

governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due. (1,029)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 3 (139,753)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General and Major Special Revenue Fund Types
For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

GENERAL FUND
Original Budget
(Incl. Carryover Budget
Encumbrances) (Amended) Actual Encumbrances Variance
Revenues:
Real property and tax items $ 2,556,727 $ 2,556,727 $ 2,569,351 $ - $ 12,624
Non-property taxes 1,455,000 1,455,000 1,668,997 - 213,997
Departmental income 181,643 181,643 242,089 - 60,446
Intergovernmental charges 571,072 571,072 567,563 - (3,509)
Use of money and property 4,100 4,100 C 1,772 - (2,328)
Licenses and permits 3,100 3,100 20,575 - 17,475
Fines and forfeitures 45,000 45,000 52,681 - 7,681
Sale of property and
compensation for loss 10,500 10,500 105,114 - 94,614
Miscellaneous 8,000 8,000 183,790 - 175,790
State and county aid 212,000 212,000 266,051 - 54,051
Federal aid - - 7,472 - 7,472
Total Revenues $ 5,047,142 $ 5,047,142 $ 5,685,455 3 - $ 638,313
Expenditures:
Current:
General government support h) 612,487 $ 688,987 $ 556,108 $ 117,158 $ 15,721
Public safety 1,860,011 2,010,166 1,954,066 44,823 11,277
Health 25,412 54,570 48,037 - 6,533
Transportation 766,486 1,032,249 997,341 31,238 3,670
Economic assistance and opportunity 7,260 7,275 6,917 - 358
Culture and recreation 185,135 185,178 183,898 - 1,280
Home and community services 45,727 56,365 52,044 - 4321
Employee benefits 1,360,890 1,075,103 1,007,722 - 67,381
Debt Service:
Debt service - principal 36,925 46,925 43,078 - 3,847
Debt service - interest and other charges 76,078 41,078 40,719 - 359
Total Expenditures 3 4,976,411 $ 5,197,896 $ 4,889,930 3 193,219 $ 114,747
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 3 70,731 § (150,754) § 795,525 $  (193,219) § 753,060
Other Financing Sources and Uses:
Operating transfers - out $ (158,000) $ - 8§ - $ - % -
Total Other Financing
Sources and Uses $ (158,000) § - 3 - 5 - -
Net change in fund balances $ (87,269) $ (150,734) $ 795,525 $  (193,219) $ 753,060
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,753,962 1,753,962 1,753,962 - -
Fund Balance - Ending § 1,666,693 $ 1,603,208 $ 2,549,487 $ (193,219) § 753,060

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
May 31, 2012

Business-Type Activities

Total

Water Sewer Business-Type
ASSETS Fund Fund Activities
Cash and cash equivalents 3 619,712 h) 2 $ 619,714
Accounts receivable, net 207,664 - 207,664
Deferred expenditures ‘ V 190 ' - 190
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 2,035 - 2,035
Infrastructure 1,174,786 - 1,174,786
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,004,387 $ 2 $ 2,004,389
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 200,546 3 - $ 200,546
Accrued liabilities 5,797 - 5,797
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in one year 26,922 - 26,922
Due in more than one year 773,046 - 773,046
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,006,311 $ - $ 1,006,311
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5 376,853 $ - 376,853
Restricted for:
Unrestricted 621,223 621,225
TOTAL NET ASSETS 5 998,076 $ 3 998,078

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, WAYNE COUNTY, NEW YORK

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges for services
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE:

General government support

Home and community services
Employee benefits
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

OPERATING INCOME OR (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):

Interest

Debt service interest
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUE (EXPENSE)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING (restated)

TOTAL NET ASSETS, ENDING

Business-Type Activities

Total

Water Sewer Business-Type
Fund Fund Activities
1,211,302 $ 1,211,302
1,211,302 $ 1,211,302
$ 14,944 3 14,944
774,842 774,842
70,753 70,753
61,427 61,427
3 921,966 $ 921,966
$ 289,336 k) 289,336
h 1,976 $ 1,976
(49,022) (49,022)
$ (47,046) $ (47,046)
$ 242,290 $ 242,290
755,786 755,788
$ 998,076 3 998,078

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received for services provided
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed assets
Interest expense

Principal payments on bonds
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest income
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

ADJUSTMENT TO RECONCILE INCOME TO
NET CASH BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES -
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-Type Activities Total
Water Sewer Business-Type
Fund Fund Activities
1,155,316 § ¥ 1,155,316
(581,627) (581,627)
(249,135) (249,135)
324,554 $ ¥ 324,554
(239,780) % $ (239,780)
(49,022) (49,022)
(26,922) (26,922)
(315,724) % $ (315,724)
1,976 ) $ 1,976
1,976 $ $ 1,976
10,806 $ h 10,806
608,906 608,908
619,712 $ 5 619,714
289,336 $ 3 289,336
61,427 3 $ 61,427
(55,986) (55,986)
29,777 29,777
35,218 $ $ 35,218
324,554 $ $ 324,554




VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

May 31, 2012
Private
Purpose
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § 113,444
TOTAL ASSETS § 113,444
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ -
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ -
NET ASSETS
Unreserved $ 113,444
TOTAL NET ASSETS § 113,444

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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29,350
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

Private
Purpose
Funds
Additions
Contributioné | | $ 5,759
Investment earnings 321
Total Additions 5 6,080
Deductions
Payments $ 23,568
Total Deductions $ 23,568
Change in net assets $ (17,488)
Net Assets - Beginning 130,932
Net Assets - Ending $ 113,444

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT, MONROE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Notes To Basic Financial Statements

May 31, 2012

L Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The financial statements of the Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York have been prepared
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units, The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's
accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York is governed by Village Law and other
general laws of the State of New York. The Board of Trustees is the legislative body responsible for
the overall operations, the Mayor serves as chief executive officer, and the Village Treasurer serves as
chief fiscal officer.

The following basic services are provided: Police & law Enforcement, Fire Protection, Street
Maintenance, Sewer and Water Facilities and Community Development.

All governmental activities and functions performed for the Village of Brockport, Monroe
County, New York are its direct responsibility. No other governmental organizations have been
included or excluded from the reporting entity.

The financial reporting entity consists of the following, as set forth in GASB Statement 14 as
amended by GASB Statement 39:

1. The primary government which is the Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York;
2. Organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and;

3. Other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the Village’s reporting entity is based
on several criteria, including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accountability. Based on
the application of these criteria, there are no component units within the Village of Brockport, Monroe
County, New York.

1. Excluded From the Reporting Entity

Although the following organizations, functions or activities are related to the
Village they are not included in the Village reporting entity because of the reasons noted:

a. The Seymowr Library — The Village participates with the Towns of Clarkson and
Sweden in the joint operations of the Library. The net cost of operating this joint
activity is distributed among the participating municipalities on the basis of
population, with the Village of Brockport contributing 41% of the government
contributions.
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(L) (Continued)

B. Basic Financial Statements

1. Government-Wide Statements

The Village’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the
Village as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Village’s major funds). All of
the Village’s services are classified as governmental activities, except for the sewer and water
funds which are classified as enterprise funds.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the governmental activities are
presented on a consolidated basis and are reported on a full accrual, economic resources basis,
which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and
obligations. The Village’s net assets are reported in three parts — invested in capital assets, net
of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The Village first uses
restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of
each of the Village’s functions, i.e., public safety and transportation, etc. The functions are
also supported by general government revenues (property, sales taxes, mortgage tax, state
revenue sharing, and investment earnings, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross
expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function. Operation grants include
operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The Village’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements
by type (restricted purposes, and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for
the benefit of a third party and can not be used to address activities or obligations of the
Government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide financial statements.

The Village does not allocate indirect costs. An administrative service fee is charged
by the General Fund to the Village’s special district funds that is eliminated like a
reimbursement (reducing the revenue and expense in the General Fund) to recover the direct
costs of services provided (finance, personnel, purchasing, legal, technology, management,
etc.).

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Village as an entity
and the change in the Village’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activities.

2. Fund Financial Statements

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major fund categories. Non-
major funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets
forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental) for the determination of
major funds.

a. Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those major and non-
major funds through which most governmental functions are financed. The
acquisition, use and balances of expendable financial resources and the related
liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus of
the governmental funds is upon determination of financial position and changes in
financial position. The following are the Village's governmental fund types.
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(1) (Continued)

1. Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - the principal operating fund and includes all
operations not required to be recorded in other funds.

2. Non-Major Governmental Funds

The other funds which do not meet the major fund criteria are
aggregated and reported as non-major other governmental funds. The
following are reported as non-major other governmental funds.

Capital Projects Fund - used to account for financial resources to
be used for the acquisition, construction or renovation of capital
facilities, or the acquisition of equipment.

b. Proprietary Funds

Are used to account for ongoing organizations or activities which are similar
to those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon
determination of the flow of economic resources. The following proprietary fund is
utilized.

1. Enterprise Funds — are used to account for those operations that
provide a service and are financed primarily by a user charge for
that service. The Village’s Enterprise Fund includes the Water and
Sewer Funds.

C. Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity
for others and therefore, are not available to support Village programs. The reporting
focus is on net assets and changes in net assets and are reported using accounting
principles similar to proprietary funds.

Because by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third
party (other local governments, private parties) and cannot be used to address
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the
government-wide statements.

Agency Fund - is custodial in nature and does not present results of
operations or have measurement focus. The Agency Fund is accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This fund is used to account
for assets that the government holds for others in an agency capacity.

Private Purpose Trust Funds - are used to report certain trust
arrangements under which principal and income benefit individuals, private
organizations, or other governments,

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when’” transactions are recorded regardless
of the measurement focus applied.
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1. Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities the
governmental activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income,
changes in net assets (or cost recovery) and financial position. All assets and liabilities
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Equity is
classified as net assets.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus
is used. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial
resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available
spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

Proprietary fund types are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues, including unbilled amounts, are recognized when earned;
expenses are recorded when the liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash inflows and outflows. Capital assets, the related outstanding debt and other long-term
liabilities related to activities of the proprietary fund type, are recorded within this fund type.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from the proprietary funds’
principal operations, providing services and producing and delivering goods. Non-operating
revenues and expenses are reported as capital and related financing activities, or investing
activities which normally would not be reported as components of operating income.

2. Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities the
governmental activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when
the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when “measurable and available”. Measurable means knowing or being able to
reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter (within the year) to pay current liabilities. Expenditures (including capital
outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation
bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

3. Changes in Accounting Standards

GASB has issued Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions, which enhances the usefulness of fund balance information by providing
clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the
existing governmental fund type definitions. The Village has implemented this statement for
the year ended May 31, 2012.
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4, Future Changes in Accounting Standards

The GASB has issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-
an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, which will be effective for the year
ending May 31, 2014.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Conlained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which will be effective for the year ending May 31, 2013.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which will be effective for the
year ending May 31, 2013.

The Village is currently studying these statements and plans on adoption as required.

D. Financial Statement Amounts

1. Cash and Investments

The Village’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

New York State Law governs the Village’s investment policies. Resources must be
deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located within the State.
Permissible investments include obligations of the United States Treasury, United States
Agencies, repurchase agreements and obligations of New York State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand and time deposits and certificates of deposit not
covered by FDIC insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of
the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its municipalities and
Districts.

2. Statement of Cash Flows

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows of the proprietary fund types, cash
and cash equivalents include all unrestricted cash of those funds. The statement of cash flows
is reported using the indirect method of reporting.

3. Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year
end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon
historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for
the governmental activities include sales tax, fire protection and sewer fees.

Accounts receivable are shown gross, with uncollectible amounts recognized under

the direct write-off method. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since
it is believed that such allowance would not be material.
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Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends

on whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations and whether they are reported
in the government —~wide or fund financial statements.

a. Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for
as capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets which are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated
expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the
Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. A capitalization threshold of
$2,500 is used to report capital assets. The range of estimated useful lives by type of
assets is as follows:

Class Life in Years
Buildings 20-40 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3-20 Years
Improvements 10-40 Years
Infrastructure 25-50 Years
b. Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund
upon acquisition.

Deferred Revenue

The Village reports deferred revenue in its basic financial statements. Deferred

revenue arises when a potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenue also arises when resources are
received by the Village before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received
prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both
recognition criteria are met, or when the Village has legal claim to resources, the liability for
deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

6.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

Payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the village-

wide financial statements. In the governmental funds, payables and accrued liabilities are paid
in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources. Claims and judgments, other
post-employment benefits payable and compensated absences that will be paid from
governmental funds are reported as a liability in the funds financial statements only to the
extent that they are due for payment in the current year. Bonds and other long-term
obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are recognized as a liability in the fund
financial statements when due.
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Long-term obligations represent the Village’s future obligations or future economic
outflows. The liabilities are reported as due in one year or due within more than one year in
the Statement of Net Assets.

a. Compensatory Absences

Village employees are entitled to accrue 260 days of sick leave and 30 days
of vacation. An individual who leaves the employment of the Village, either through
termination or retirement is entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and unused
compensatory time. No cash payments are made for non-police employees’ unused
sick leave, however, an employee who retires may receive up to 165 days as
additional service credit. Police personnel are allowed to cash in any unused sick
time at a rate of one for one for the first sixty days and two for one in excess. Full
time police officers may accumulate at any one time 160 hours of compensatory
time. Each full time employee receives 5 personal days each June 1%, Personal leave
days are not cumulative, however, any unused personal leave days at the end of the
fiscal year are added to an employee’s vacation time.

b. Other Benefits

Village employees participate in the New York State Employees’ Retirement
System.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Village provides post-
employment health coverage to retired employees in accordance with the provision
of various employment contracts in effect at the time of retirement. The Village
recognizes the cost of providing health insurance by recording its share of insurance
premiums as an expenditure.

7. Encumbrances

For financial reporting purposes encumbrances have been reclassified to assigned
fund balance on the governmental funds for general fund and assigned or restricted fund
balance in the capital fund. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts
or other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded for budgetary control
purposes to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriations, is employed in the general,
village-wide capital improvement project and non-major funds.

8. Equity Classifications

a. Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of capital
assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets,

2. Restricted net assets - consists of net assets with constraints
placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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3. Unrestricted net assets - all other net assets that do not meet the
definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

b. Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

As of May 31, 2012, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified

as follows:

1. Restricted fund balance — Amounts constrained to specific
purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or
by enabling legislation.

2. Assigned fund balance — Amounts a government intends to use for
a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the Board or by an
official or body to which the Board delegates the authority.

3. Unassigned fund balance — Amounts that are available for village
purposes pursuant to any Law restrictions. Any positive amounts
are reported only in the general fund.

E. Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses
1. Revenues

Village real property taxes are levied annually no later than May 31 and become a
lien on June 1. Taxes are collected during the period June 1 to August 1. For the periods
August 1 to October 31 taxes are collected with penalties and interest.

The County of Monroe currently imposes a sales and use tax. Based upon a complex
formula, a portion of the total revenue collected is allocated annually to the Village in four
quarterly installments.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and, 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources
are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes,

2. Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for
governmental activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:

Governmental Funds — By Character: Current (further classified by function)
Debt Service

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial

resources. Government-wide financial statements report expenses relating to use of economic
resources.
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F. Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of
Net Assets and Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as inter-fund activity and balances in
the fund financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified.

1. Fund Financial Statements

Inter-fund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund
categories is reported as follows in the fund financial statements:

a. Inter-fund loan — amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are
reported as inter-fund receivables and payables.

b. Inter-fund services — sales or purchases of goods and services between
funds are reported as revenues and expenditures/expenses.

c. Inter-fund reimbursements — repayments from funds responsible for
certain expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported
as reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective
funds

d. Inter-fund transfers — flow of assets from one fund to another where
repayment is not expected are reported as transfers in and out.

2. Government-Wide Financial Statements

Inter-fund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the
government-wide financial statements as follows:

a, Internal balances — amounts reported in the fund financial statements as
inter-fund receivables and payables are eliminated in the governmental columns of
the Statement of Net Assets, except for the net residual amounts due between
governmental funds.

b. Internal activities — amounts reported as inter-fund transfers in the fund
financial statements are eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Activities.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

11 Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability:

By its nature as a local government unit, the Village is subject to various federal, state and local laws
and contractual regulations. An analysis of the Village’s compliance with significant laws and regulations and
demonstration of its stewardship over Village resources follows.
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A. Budgetary Data
1. Budget Policies - The budget policies are as follows:
a. No later than March 20, the budget officer submits a tentative budget to the

Village Board for the fiscal year commencing the following June 1. The tentative
budget includes proposed expenditures and the proposed means of financing for all
funds.

b. After public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments, no later
than May 1, the governing board adopts the budget.

c. All modifications of the budget must be approved by the Village Board.

2. Budget Basis of Accounting

Budgets are adopted annually on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles. Appropriations authorized for the current year are increased by the
amount of encumbrances carried forward from the prior year.

3. Revenue Restrictions

The Village has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or
local requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources are those revenues raised for the
special district special revenue funds.

IIL Detail Notes on All Funds and Account Groups:

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Village’s deposits may
not be returned to it. While the Village does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New
York State statutes govern the Village’s investment policies, as discussed previously in these notes.

The Village’s aggregate bank balances (disclosed in the financial statements), included
balances not covered by depository insurance at year end, collateralized as follows:

Uncollateralized $ 1,630,587
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging

financial institution 1,449,876

Total $ 3,080,463

Restricted cash represents cash and cash equivalents where use is limited by legal
requirements. These assets represent amounts required by statute to be reserved for various purposes.
Restricted cash as of year end included $762,117 within the governmental funds and $113,444 in the
fiduciary funds.
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B. Receivables

Receivables at May 31, 2012 consisted of the following, which are stated at net realizable

value, Village management has deemed the amounts to be fully collectible:

Description
Governmental Activities:

General Fund - Sales Tax

General Fund - Tax Certificates
General Fund - Fire Protection
General Fund - Miscellaneous
General Fund - Due From T & A

Business-Type Activities:

Water Fund - Water Rents/Penalties

Total Receivables

C. Changes In Capital Assets

1. Governmental Activities

Amount

b 250,152
9,341

68,201

46,040

183,006

207,664

3 764,404

A summary of governmental activities changes in capital assets follows:

Balance Balance
Type 06/01/11 Additions Deletions 5/31/12
Capital assets not being Depreciated:
Land 3 178,950 & - § - 3 178,950
Total capital assets not being depreciated 5 178,950  § - ¥ - § 178,950
Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements $ 2,522,792 % 9,575 § (685,635) & 1,846,732
Land improvements 288,449 - - 288,449
Machinery and equipment 5,141,264 - (3,064,624) 2,076,640
Infrastructure 2,082,706 - (358,386) 1,724,320
Total other capital assets at historical cost $ 10035211 § 9,575 $ (4,108,645 § 5,936,141
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements $ 1,174,289 § 50,363 $ (479,948) § 744,704
Land improvements 125,265 13,623 - 138,888
Machinery and equipment 4,308,529 57,202 (2,520,702) 1,845,029
Infrastructure 494,944 85,178 (250,869) 329,253
Total accumulated depreciation $ 6,103,027 $ 206366 § (3,251,519) $ 3,057,874
Other capital assets, net § 3,932,184 § (196,791) 3§ (857,126) $ 2,878,267
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 4,111,134 §  (196,791) § (857,126) § 3,057,217

Depreciation expense for the period was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities

General Government
Transportation

Culture and Recreation
Public Safety

Home and Community Services

Total

Amount
3,736
14,793
14,957
41,153
131,727

206,366
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2. Business-Type Activities

A summary of business-type activity changes in capital assets follows:

Balance Balance
Type 06/01/11 Additions Deletions 5/31/12
Other capital assets: : -
Buildings and improvements $ 8,150 § - % - § 8,150
Infrastructure 1,157,995 239,780 - 1,397,775
Total other capital assets at historical cost $ 1,166,145 $ 239,780 $ - $ 1,405,925
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements $ 5707 § 408 3§ - 8 6,115
Infrastructure 161,970 61,019 - 222,989
Total accumulated depreciation $ 167,677  $ 61,427  $ - § 229,104
Other capital assets, net $ 998468 § 178,353 % - $ 1,176,821
Business-Type Activities capital assets, net $ 998,468 §$ 178,353 § - $ 1,176,821
Depreciation expense totaling $61,427 was charged to home and community
services.
D. Long-Term Debt
1. Serial/Statutory Installment Bonds - The Village, borrows money in order to

acquire land or high cost equipment or construct buildings and improvements. This enables
the cost of these capital assets to be borne by the present and future taxpayers receiving the
benefit of the capital assets. These long-term liabilities are full faith and credit debt of the

Village. The provision to be made in future budgets for capital indebtedness represents the
amount, exclusive of interest, authorized to be collected in future years from taxpayers and

others for liquidation of the long-term liabilities.

2. Interest on long-term debt for the year was composed of;

Governmental Activities:
Interest paid
Less: interest accrued in the prior year
Plus: interest accrued in the current year
Total interest expense - Governmental Activities
Business-Tvpe Activities:
Interest paid
Plus: interest accrued in the current year
Total interest expense - Business-Type Activities
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(1,333)
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47,546
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5. The following table summarizes the Village’s future debt service requirements as of
May 31, 2012.
Governmental Activities Business-Type Actvities
Year Bonds Interest Bonds Interest
2013 3 43,078 $ 53,151 26,922 3 33,217
2014 - 46,155 51,374 28,845 32,107
2015 46,155 49,470 28,845 30,917
2016 49,232 47,567 30,768 29,727
2017 52,309 45,536 32,691 28,458
2018-22 307,700 192,774 192,300 122,476
2023-27 372,317 123,726 232,683 77,324
2028-31 363,086 39,520 226,914 24,699
Total $ 1,280,032 3 603,118 799,968 $ 378,925
G. Fund Balances
1. Restricted

Type

General Fund -

Fire Equipment-22

Currently, New York State laws still use the terminology reserves. The Village
currently utilizes the following reserves which are classified as restricted funds:

Workers’ Compensation Reserve — The Village Board established a workers’

compensation reserve in accordance with General Municipal Law, Section 6(j).

Capital Reserve - The Village maintains multiple Capital Reserve Funds, recorded

in the General Fund and Water Fund as follows:

Equipment Replacement-24

Ambulance-26

Communication Equipment-30
Fire Chief Vehicle Replacement-39
Parks and Playgrounds-41

Buildings-43

Computer Replacement-50

Total

Beginning Equity Ending

Balance Revenue Expenses Transfer Balance
$440,906 $ 1,141 $ (73,250)  $ 160,000 $ 528,797
1,804 4 - - 1,808
16,228 39 - - 16,267
25,747 - (25,747) - -
52,144 165 (26,695) 10,000 35,614
27,007 - - - 27,007
18,735 - - - 18,735
2,204 - (2,204) - -
$584,775 $ 1,349 $(127,896) § 176,000 $ 628,228

Assioned

The Village has the following assigned funds:

General Fund —

1. Appropriated for Taxes
2. Encumbrances

37



(II1. ) (Continued)

3. Unassigned

Unassigned funds include the residual classification for the Village’s general fund
and all spendable amounts not contained in other classifications.

The following table summarizes the Village’s fund balance according to the
descriptions above:

General Capital
FUND BALANCE: Fund Projects Total
Restricted -
Capital reserve $ 628,228 $ - $ 628,228
Workers' Compensation 112,197 - 112,197
Capital improvements - 21,692 21,692
Total Restricted S 740,425 $ 21,692 $ 762,117
Assigned - : : :
Appropriated for taxes 3 215,274 $ - § 215274
General government support 117,158 - 117,158
Public safety 44,823 - 44 823
Transportation 31,238 - 31,238
Total Assigned $ 408,493 3 - $ 408,493
Unassigned $ 1,400,569 5 - S 1,400,569

TOTAL FUND BALANCE § 2,549,487 $ 21,692 $§ 2,571,179

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balances is available, the Village considers restricted funds to have been
spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which assigned or unassigned fund balances
are available, the Village considers amounts to have been spent first out of assigned funds and
then unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Village has provided otherwise in its
commitment actions.

Iv. Other Notes:

A.

Emplovee Pension and Other Benefit Plans

1. Pension Plans
Plan Description

The Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York participates in the New York
State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) and the New York State and Local
Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS). These are cost sharing multiple employer
retirement systems. The Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are
governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL). As set
forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York serves as sole trustee and
administrative head of the System. The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and
regulations for the administration and transaction of the business of the System and for the
custody and control of its funds. The System issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System, Gov. Alfred E.
Smith State Office Building, Albany, NY 12244,
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Funding Policy

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined the New York State
and Local Employees' Retirement System after July 27, 1976 and before Janvary 1, 2010 with
less than ten years membership, who contribute 3% of their salary. Those joining on or after
January 1, 2010 are required to contribute 3.5% of their annual salary for their entire career.
Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates
expressed as proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computing the
contributions required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund.

The Village of Brockport, Monroe County, New York is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. The required contributions for the current year and the two
preceding years were:

ERS PFRS
2012 '$ 123,413 $ 223,037
2011 $ 135,060 $ 186,678
2010 $ 142,775 $ 189,681

The Village contributions made to the System were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required for each year.

2. Deferred Compensation Plan

The Village maintains a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Section 457
of the Internal Revenue Code for which Village employees have the option to participate.

3. Health Reimbursement Account

Effective September 1, 2010, the Village implemented a Health Reimbursement
Account Plan (HRA). The Village contributes to the Plan for eligible employees based upon
employment criteria as outlined in the Plan document. The eligible expenses allowed for
reimbursement under the Plan are medical expenses as defined by IRS Code Section 213(d)
and eligible over the counter medical expenses.

The Plan year is accounted for starting September 1 through August 31. Any

participant’s funds remaining in the account at the end of a Plan year will be forfeited back to
the Village. The Plan is accounted for in the Village’s General Fund.

4, Other Postemployment Benefits — Village-Wide

Plan Description

In addition to providing pension benefits described in Note IV, the Village provides
post-employment medical and prescription drug benefits (OPEB) for retirees, spouses, and
their covered dependents through the Village’s Postemployment Health Care Benefits
Program (Plan). The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer
contributions are governed by the Village and can be amended by the Village through its
union contracts. The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not
been established to account for the plan.

39



(IV.) (Continued)

Funding Policy

The Village currently pays for health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Once
New York State Law allows for the establishment of a trust to fund and invest assets
necessary to pay for the accumulated liability, the Village will study the establishment of such
a trust. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village’s annual other postemployment (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), and amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Village’s annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the Village’s net
OPEB obligation by governmental activities:

Annual required contribution 5 322,665
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB cost (expense) $ 322,665
Contributions made 249,485

Increase in net OPEB obligation $ 73,180
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 73,180
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 146,360

The Village’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year end 2012 was as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual Net

Year Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
5/31/2012 $ 322,665 77.32% $ 73,180
5/31/2011 $ 322,665 77.32% 3 73,180

Funded Status and Funding Progress.

As of May 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was unfunded.
The actuarial accrued Hability for benefits was $6,773,867, and the actuarial value of assets
was $0 resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $6,773,867. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $2,351,661, and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 288.05%.
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of the occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress is presented as required supplemental information following the notes to the
financial statements.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and includes the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

@ Q) (6)
Actuarial Unfunded UAAL
Accrued Actuarial &) Asa
Actuarial 1) Liability 3) Accrued Active Percentage
Valuation Actuarial (AAL) Funded Liability Members of Covered
Date Value of Entry Age Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
May 31, Assets Normal Method /@) 2)-() Payroll @ /(5
2011 3 - $ 6,773,867 0.00% $ 6,773,867 $ 2,202,012 307.62%
2012 $ - § 6,773,867 0.00% $§ 6,773,867 $ 2,351,661 288.05%
In the May 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal method was used. The
discount rate used was 4.5%. Because the plan is unfunded, reference to the general assets
was considered in the selection of the 4.5% rate. The valuation assumes a 9.0% medical cost
trend, reduced by decrements to a rate of 5% after seven years. The remaining amortization
period at May 31, 2012 was twenty-eight years.
B. Risk Management
1. General Information
The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to injuries to employees, theft,
damages, natural disasters, etc. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased
from independent third parties. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage for the past three years,
C. Commitments and Contingencies

1. Litigation

The Village is not aware of pending or threatened litigation as of the date of these
financial statements.
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2. Rental Commitments and Leased Assets

The Village leases a copier under an operating lease. Total expenditures on this lease
for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012 totaled $11,844. The maximum future non-cancelable

operating lease payments are as follows:

Year Ended ‘
May 31, Lease Description Amount
2013 Copier $ 11,848
2014 Copier $ 5,894
3. Federal and State Funded Programs

The Village participates in a number of Federal and New York State grant and
assistance programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors or their representatives. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Village
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Ambulance Services

During the 2012 fiscal year the Village discontinued all ambulance services. On August 4,

2011 the Village Board approved via Board resolution to sell the designated ambulance vehicles and
equipment for the purchase price of $55,000 to the Brockport Volunteer Ambulance Corps, Inc.

V. Subsequent Events:

On August 92011 the Village of Brockport, Town of Sweden, and the Town of Clarkson passed a
resolution during a joint public hearing establishing the Brockport Fire District. As of July 1, 2012 fire
protection is no longer a service the Village provides internally.

V1. Restatement of Net Assets and Fund Balance:

The Village determined that reporting of the water and sewer operations should be business-type
activities. Therefore, the following restatements were made as of May 31, 2012,

Governmentwide Statements Proprietary Fund Statements
Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Water Sewer
Net assets/fund balance as previously
reported at May 31, 2012 $ 5,090,666 $ - $ - 3
Adjustments -
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt (171,578) 171,578 171,578
Captial reserves (198,585) 198,585 198,585
Unrestricted (385,625) 385,625 385,623

Net assets/fund balance as restated at

May 31, 2012

5 4,334,878 b 755,788 3 755,786 $
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Date: 04/16/2013 l Statement of Actual & Estimated Revenue I User: DAN

Time; 2:15:29PM Page: 1
Village of Brockport
For Period Ending 03/31/2013
Selecting on FUND from Ato G

ACCOUNT ESTIMATED MONTH-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE UNREALIZED ACTUAL YTD

DESCRIPTION REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE % REALIZED
AD599.0000

Appropriated Fund Balance 215,274.00 215,274.00
A1001.0000

Real Property Taxes 2,457,326.00 2,455,977.08 1,348.92 99.95
A1081.0000

In-Lieu-Of Taxes 130,000.00 153,247.64 173,698.04 43,698.04- 133.61
A1090.0000

Int & Penaliies on Taxes 8,000.00 6,464.77 1,635.23 80.81
A1120.0000

County Sales Tax 1,328,000.00 1,179,895.84 148,104.16 88.85
A1130.0000

Utility Gross Receipts Tax 55,000.00 19,799.24 69,637.70 14,637.70- 126.61
A1170.0000

Franchise Tax 81,000.00 78,836.50 79,640.09 1,359.91 98.32
A1230.0000

Clerk/Treasurer Fees 1,000.00 110.00 1,445.25 445.25- 144.53
A1520.0000

Police Fees 1,000.00 70.00 665.00 335.00 66.50
A1560.0000

Safety Inspections 15,000.00 2,685.00 17,255.00 2,255.00- 115.03
A1640.0000

Ambulance Charges 650.00 5,569.34 5,569.34-
A1710.0000

Public Works Services 1,000.00 472.52 628.66 371.34 62.87
A1789.0000

Docking Fees 4,200.00 4,440.30 240.30- 105.72
A2089.0000

Farmers Market Fees 2,500.00 2,950.00 450.00- 118.00
A2110.0000

Zoning Fees 300.00 200.00 100.00 66.67
A2115.0000

Planning Fees 1,000.00 495.00 505.00 48.50
A2262.0000

Fire Protection 33,590.00 33,589.60 0.40 100.00
A2389.3000

Monroe County - DWI 14,771.16 14,771.16-
A2389.8000

Monroe Ctny-CD Block Grants 41,750.00 41,750.00-
A2388.9001

SCS Contribution- Crossing Guards 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00
A2401.0000

Interest & Earnings 3,000.00 33247 3,980.85 980.85- 132.70
A2401.1000

Int Earned-Spec Reserves 28.39 958.61 958.61-
A2401.3000

Interest & Earnings- Asset Forfeiture 0.13 4.32 4.32-
A2450.0000

Comissions 1.00 1.00-
A2545.0000

Bus / Occupation License 17,500.00 4,050.00 14,000.00 3,500.00 80.00
A2590.0000

Permits 5,000.00 4,525.00 475.00 80.50
A2610.0000

Fines & Forfeitures 50,000.00 6,832.50 51,694.50 1,694.50- 103.39
A2650.0000

Scrap Sales 1,000.00 885,11 4.89 99.51
A2655.0000

Minor Sales 3,500.00 3,500.00
A2665.0000

Sale of Equipment 2,850.00 16,550.00 16,550.00-
A2680.0000

Insurance Recoveries 6,000.00 9,262.50 47,225.47 41,225.47- 787.09



Date: 04/16/2013 Statement of Actual & Estimated Revenue User: DAN

Time: 2:15:29PM ; Page: 2
Village of Brockport
For Period Ending 03/31/2013
Selecting on FUND fromAto G

ACCOUNT ESTIMATED MONTH-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE UNREALIZED ACTUAL YTD

DESCRIPTION REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE % REALIZED
A2690.0000

Other Comp-Landfill Reimbursement 2,500.00 2,500.00
A2701.0000

Refund of P/Y Exp 7,500.00 28,851.98 21,351.98- 384.69
A2705.0000

Gifts & Donations 15,400.10 15,400.10-
A2770.0000

Other Unclassified 500.00 68,100.00 67,600.00- 13620.00
A3001.0000

State Aid - AIM 110,000.00 110,171.00 171.00- 100.16
A3005.0000

State Aid-Mortgage Tax 35,000.00 35,000.00
A3089.7001

State Aid, CHIPS 67,000.00 67,080.01 80.01- 100.12
A3089.7003

State Aid - Historic Preservation Grant 8,742.00 8,742.00-
A3089.9000

State Aid-STEP 2,087.72 2,087.72-
A4089.0000

Medicaid Part B 376.31 376.31-

Total for Fund: 4,647,690.00 279,226.89 4,534,816.81 112,873.19 97.57

A (Fund - A)
F2140.0000

Metered Water Sales 560,000.00 42,381.23 5£33,981.55 26,018.45 95.35
F2141.0000

Meter Water Sales O/G 340,830.00 35,756.07 416,508.02 75,678.02- 122.20
F2144.0000

Water Service Charges 1,500.00 20.00 2,433.53 933.53- 162.24
F2148.0000

Interest & Penalties 10,000.00 880.44 11,688.73 1,688.73- 116.89
F2401.0000

Interest & Earnings 1,000.00 69.86 933.33 66.67 93.33
F2401.1000

Int Earned-Spec Reserves 250.00 33.96 282.90 32.90- 113.16

Total for Fund: 913,580.00 79,141.56 965,828.06 52,248.06- 105.72

F (Fund - F)
(G2122.0000

Sanitary Sewer- Sewer Charges 138,000.00 9,603.85 127,370.51 10,629.49 92.30
G2401.0000

Interest and Earning- Sewer Fund 0.90 28.08 28.08-

Total for Fund: 138,000.00 9,604.75 127,398.59 10,601.41 92.32

G {Fund - G)

Report Totals 5,699,270.00 367,973.20 5,628,043.46 71,226.54 98.75
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VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT
NOTICE TO VILLAGE TAXPAYERS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Brockport Village Board adopted the Final Budget for the
Village of Brockport for the fiscal year June 1, 2013 — May 31, 2014:

RESOLVED, that the Brockport Village Board adopts the 06/01/13 — 05/31/14 General Fund
budget in the amount of $4,697,908, the Water Fund budget in the amount of $1,089,986, and
the Sewer Fund budget in the amount of $142,300 and that there be levied and assessed
against the real property of the Village of Brockport the following sums for village government
and other charges for the fiscal year 2013-2014 with a tax rate of $11.73 per thousand of
assessed valuation levying the total taxes and other charges extended and levied against each
parcel of real property, shown on the roll prepared and verified by the Town Assessor for the
2013-2014 fiscal year:

General Fund:

Total Taxes for Current Budget $2,414,833.00
For Relevied Property Maintenance Charges $1,315.80
Water Fund:
For Relevied Water Rents & Charges 0
Sewer Fund:
For Relevied Sewer Rents & Charges 0

TOTAL REAL PROPERTY TAXES
AND OTHER CHARGES ON ROLLS

$2,416,148.80

Tax rate dropped from $12.09 to $11.73/1,000 of assessed valuation.
Water rates remain unchanged.
Sewer rates remain unchanged.

Leslie Ann Morelli
Village Clerk
Village of Brockport

For publication in the 4/28/13 edition of Suburban News and posting on Village website and at Village Hall.



Execution of Tax Warrant
WARRANT FOR COLLECTION OF TAXES 2013-2014 FISCAL YEAR

— Trustee moved, Trustee : seconded that the following resolution be
adopted:

TO: Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk
Per Real Property Tax Law 1426

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED to receive and collect from the persons named in the tax
roll the sums stated opposite their respective names, being a total of $2,416,148.80 for the
following purposes: : ' : :

General Fund:
Total Taxes for Current Budget $2,414,833.00
Relevies (property maintenance) $1,315.80

TOTAL REAL PROPERTY TAXES
AND OTHER CHARGES ON ROLLS $2,416,148.80

A vote was taken and recorded as follows:

William G. Andrews Trustee .
Margaret B. Blackman Trustee -
Kent R. Blair Trustee —
Carol L. Hannan Trustee .

M. Connie Castaneda Mayor
This resolution was thereby declared duly adopted.

Date: April 23, 2013

Maria C., Castafneda, Mayor Leslie Ann Morelli, Viliage Clerk
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REDEVELOPMENT COMPANY CONTRACT

Agreement, entered into as of the [f day of ;an&ﬁalgnj/ ,
ockp

1997, by and between the Village of Br

ort, a municipal
corporation of the State of New York (hereinafter referred to as
the "Village")f Town of Sweden, a municipal corporation of the
State of New York (hereinafter referred to as the "Town"), and
Brockport Village Limited Partnership, a New York limited
partnership (hereinafter referred to as the "Partnership").

WHEREAS, the Partnership has acquired 1.3 acres of certain
real property located in the Village of Brockport, State of New
York, a description of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit A
(hereinafter referred to as the "Real Property"); and

WHEREAS, the Partnership intends to construct twenty-eight
(28) housing units on the Real Property (hereinafter referred to
as the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Partnership as received a commitment from the
New York State Division of Housing and Community Renewal
(hereinafter referred to as "DHCR") and USDA, Rural Development
(hereinafter referred to as "USDA") for permanent financing of the
Property; and “~

WHEREAS, the Village and Town have determined that there is a
need in the Village of Brockport for low-income housing for the
elderly; and

WHEREAS, the State of New York has requested that the

Partnership make arrangements to provide that local and municipal

taxes not exceed Four Hundred Fifty Dollars ($450.00) per unit per



annum; andgd

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Village and Town to
exempt the Real Property from local and municipal taxes, provided
the Village and Town receive payments in lieu of taxes with
respect to the Real Property in an amount not to exceed Four
Hundred Fifty Dollars ($450.00) per unit per annum; and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer of the Village (hereinafter referred to
as "Supervising Agent"), and the applicable planning commission
have duly approved the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Supervising Agency and the applicable planning
commission have issued a certificate of approval for the Project;
and

WHEREAS, the plans of the Project, a proposed form of this
contract and the certificate of approval have been submitted by
the Partnership to the Village Board for its approval, and such -
approval has been duly granted; and

WHEREAS, the Partnership is willing to provide low-income
housing for the elderly and to enter into this Redevelopment
Company Contract with the Village and Town provided the
Partnership does not lose its ability to sell the Project in
accordance with applicable DHCR/USDA regulations and/or dissolve
the Partnership pursuant to New York Partnership law without
providing that the remaining surplus be paid into the general
funds of the Village and Town; and

WHEREAS, the Village and Town are willing to allow the
Partnership to sell the Project in accordance with applicable

DHCR/USDA regulations and/or dissolve the Partnership pursuant to



New York Partnership law without providing that the remaining
surplus be paid into the general funds of the Village and Town;
and.

WHEREAS, the Partnership has duly formed a Redevelopment
Company organized and existing under and pursuant to Article V of
the New York State Private Housing Finance Law (hereinafter
referred to as "Article V"); and

.~ WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into a contract as
contemplated by Article V respecting the operation and
supervision of the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual
covenants and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto,
hereby agree as follows:

Article 1. Exemption from Local and Municipal Taxes.

Pursuant to Section 125 of Article V, the Village, Town and
the Partnership hereby agree that the Real Property shall be
exempt from local and municipal taxes. For purposes of this
contract, "local and municipal taxes" shall include taxes levied
by the Village, Town, County, and school district but shall not
include assessments for local improvements.

Article 2. Pavments in Lieu of Taxes Egual to $12,600 Per Annum

(450.00 per Unit).

The Village, Town and the Partnership hereby agree that the
Partnership shall pay to the Village the annual amount of Twelve
Thousand Six Hundred Dollars ($12,600) per annum, in lieu of any
real property taxes which may become dﬁe with respect to the Real

Property for a period of fifteen (15) years. The first annual



payment shall be due twelve (12) months after the Certificate of
Occupancy is issued by the Village of Brockport and subsequent
payments be due on the anniversary date of the issuance of said
Certificate of Occupancy for a period of fifteen (15) vyears.

Final payment to be made in the year 2013 and will be applied to'
all real property taxes due within twelve (12) months of the
payment. Upon receipt of the payment in lieu of taxes, the
Village will distribute the funds among the Village, Town, County,
School, and special districts in such proportionate shares as
their tax rates are proportional to each other. If such payments
are not received by the Village by the aforementioned due date,
the Partnership shall owe late charges and accrued interest at the
rate of one percent (1%) per month, until such payments are paid
in full.

Article 3. Proiject Organized For a Public Purpose.

The Village, Town and the Partnership hereby agree that, for
purposes of Article V, the providing of low rental housing units
for the elderly constitutes a public purpose. The Village, Town
and the Partnership hereby agree that, as long as such housing is
so provided, the policies and purposes of Article V are hereby
satisfied.

Article 4. Proiject Subject to the Rules and Regulations of

DHCR, USDA and the State of New York.

The Village, Town and the Partnership hereby agree that the ‘
Project shall be operated in accordance with the applicable rules
and regulations previously promulgated or hereinafter promulgated

by DHCR and/or USDA. The Village, Town and the Partnership agree



that the rental rates to be charged to tenants for units in the
Project shall be in accordance with the applicable rules and
regulations of DHCR and USDA.

Article 5. Consistency with Article V.

The village, Town and the Partnership agree that this Contract
shall be subject to the provisions of Article V. The Village,
Town and the Partnership agree that; without enumerating the
applicable provisions of Article V, the Project shall be operated
in accordance with the provisions of Article V.

Article 6. Powers of the Partnership.

Pursuant to Section 106 of Article V, the Partnership shall
have and may exercise such of the powers conferred by law as
shall be necessary in conducting the business of the Partnership.

Article 7. Duration of this Contract.

This Redevelopment Company Contract shall terminate on a date
fifteen (15) years after the date the Certificate of Occupancy is
issued by the Village of Brockport. Any provisions of the Private
Bousing Finance Law that are intended to survive this termination
shall so survive.

Article 8. Sale of the Proiect.

Pursuant to Section 122 of Article V, the Village and Town
hereby consents to the sale of the Project by the Partnership,
provided such sale is in accordance with applicable DHCR
regulations. Pursuant to Subdivision four of Section 123 of
Article V, the Village and Town hereby consents to the voluntary
dissolution or termination of the Partnership after such sale of

the Project, and hereby consents that such dissolution or



termination need not be in accordance with Subdivisions one and
two of Section 123 of Article V.

Article 9. Miscellaneous.

(a) Binding Effect. This Agreement states the entire

understanding of the parties and shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective
successors and assigns. Deviation from the terms of this
Agreement shall be permitted only by mutual written consent of
the parties.

(b) Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed in

accordance with the laws of the Staté of New York.

(c) Usage and Headings. The paragraph headings herein are

for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.
(d) Venue. Any litigation relating hereto shall take place

in the State of New York, Supreme Court, County of Erie.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly executed this

Redevelopment Company Contract as of the day and year first

above written.

Village of Brockport

Mary n Thorpe, Mayor

Town of Sweden

BY: (:Ziﬁé?/ /47{,42£;pa;14;//

Jdghn Henion, Supervisor

Brockport Village Limited Partnership

By:

¥

Bruce C. Baird, President

BELMONT DEVELOPMENT CORP., GENERAL PARTNER



2013 RESIDENTIAL RENTAL REGISTRATION STATEMENTS

January 29 - February 5, 2013
-Mailed letters to 215 property owners containing statements for 344
properties
-Response deadline is 30 days from receipt

March 7, 2013 (approximate deadline)
-58% of property owners are in compliance (124 of 215)
-48% of statements have been returned (165 of 344)

March 11, 2013
-Reminder Notice sent to 91 property owners (179 properties)
-Deadline to respond is March 18

March 25, 2013
-87.5% of statements have now been returned (301 of 344)
-122 statements were returned subsequent to sending the Reminder
Notice
-Begin sending Notices of Violation for non-compliance

April 2, 2013
-92% of property owners are now in compliance or have been in
communication regarding compliance (197 of 215)
-93% statements have been returned or are in the process of being
returned (319 of 344)
-Notices of Violation continue

April 16, 2013
-96% of property owners are in compliance or have been in
communication regarding compliance (207 of 215)
-97% of statements have been returned or are in the process of being
returned (334 of 344)

To date, 12 residential property owners (totaling 58 properties) submitted
registration forms without the fee.



Village of Brockport DPW
‘Seasonal Employment Opportunity

SUMMER EMPLOYMENT
The Village of Brockport Department of Public Works
is accepting applications for four (4) Seasonal Laborers.
Work week shall be Monday - Friday 7:00am to 3:30pm, 40 hrs/week.
Wage subject to experience. No benefits.
Must have a valid NYS Drivers License. Minimum age requirement is 18.
Applicants are subject to pre-employment and random alcohol/drug testing.

Employment application can be obtained at Brockport Village Hall
or downloaded from the Village website: www.brockportny.org.

Completed applications must be turned in to:
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk
Village of Brockport
49 State Street, Brockport, NY 14420
Monday thru Friday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm

Application Deadline: Friday, May 10, 2013



Good morning everyone,

The purpose of this letter is to inform you of my wish to resign from the Historic Preservation Board of Brockport.
With my current professional positions | can not give the board the time and dedication it deserves. | am grateful
for all that | have learned and all the opportunities | have had through the board these past years. Every meeting
I left in awe at the passion and knowledge the board posses. | am amazed at the great accomplishments that
were and still are being achieved. | know you all will continue to do great things. Please understand that | know
there are others in this community that would love the opportunity that | have had, and | believe they can better
dedicate themselves to the board at this time. Thank you again for the support, the laughs, and the opportunity to
make Brockport a stronger and more historically recognized community.

Best of luck,
Caitlin Moore

PS- I'm not sure if you have anyone in mind for the position of archaeologist, however the only name that comes
to mind is Dr. Jennifer Ramsay. She is a great friend and excellent mentor for me at SUNY Brockport. She also
lives in the village!




